

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT  


MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION  


FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS  


WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 17, 2021  


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:00 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:00 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE 


LOCATION 


TIME 


EMPLOYEE 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting November 17, 2021 - Page 1 of 4 


 Item Purpose / Support 


 Agenda  


   


1. Convene Closed Session 5:00 p.m. 


1.1. Roll Call  


1.2. Public Comments prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda. 


   


2. Closed Session Items    


2.1. Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments 


Information for possible action 


2.2. Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
(Govt. Code Section 54957)  


Information for possible action 


2.3. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Govt. 
Code Section 54957.6) 


SCCS Negotiator Parks will provide an update to and 
receive direction from Trustees regarding negotiations with 
the GSCFT. 


2.4. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Govt. 
Code Section 54957.6) 


SCCS Negotiator Parks will provide an update to and 
receive direction from Trustees regarding negotiations with 
the SCCCE. 


   


3. Convene Open Session 6:00 p.m. 


3.1. Welcome and Pledge of Allegiance  


3.2. Agenda changes, additions, or deletions  


   


1/111







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT  


MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION  


FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS  


WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 17, 2021  


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:00 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:00 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE 


LOCATION 


TIME 


EMPLOYEE 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting November 17, 2021 - Page 2 of 4 


 Item Purpose / Support 


4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 


Note to Members of the Public: Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting. Santa Cruz City School 
Board Members appreciate your presence and your 
comments regarding items not on the agenda are 
valued. Per Santa Cruz City Schools Board Bylaw 
protocols, Trustees will not comment on Public 
Comments during this time. 


   


5. General Public Business  


   


6. Consent Agenda: General Contracts & 
Agreements 


 


6.1. Educational Services  


6.1.1. Contract: Special Education: Steps to 
Success 


 


6.1.2. Contract: Special Education: Abrite   


6.1.3. Contract: Special Education: Beyond Student 
Success Team 


 


   


7. Closed Session Action Report  


   


 
8. 


 
Items to be Transacted and/or Discussed 


 


8.1. New Business: Resolution 15-21-22: AB361 Determine whether or not to continue with virtual Board 
meetings in December.  


2/111







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT  


MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION  


FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS  


WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 17, 2021  


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:00 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:00 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE 


LOCATION 


TIME 


EMPLOYEE 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting November 17, 2021 - Page 3 of 4 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.2. Study Session: Career Technical Education The study session on the Career Technical Education 
program will feature updates from teachers and staff. 


9. Adjournment  


   


10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  


   


11. Closed Session Action Report (if 
necessary) 


 


   


12. Adjournment  


   
 
The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://sccs.net/board_of_education or may be viewed at the District Office, 133 Mission St. Ste. 100, Santa Cruz, 
CA 95060.    
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting 
as any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in 
open session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be 
considered in closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Alyssa 
Martinez by telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por 
favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Alyssa Martinez por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 
 
Board Meeting Information 


1. The Study Session on November 17, 2021, 6:00 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


2. The Regular Meeting on December 15, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


3/111







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT  


MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION  


FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS  


WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 17, 2021  


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:00 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:00 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE 


LOCATION 


TIME 


EMPLOYEE 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting November 17, 2021 - Page 4 of 4 


3. The Regular Meeting on January 12, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


4. The Study Session on January 19, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


5. The Regular Meeting on February 9, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


6. The Regular Meeting on February 23, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


7. The Regular Meeting on March 9, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


8. The Regular Meeting on March 23, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


9. The Regular Meeting on April 13, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


10. The Study Session on April 27, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


11. The Regular Meeting on May 11, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


12. The Study Session on May 25, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


13. The Regular Meeting on June 1, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


14. The Regular Meeting on June 15, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


 


4/111







AGENDA ITEM: 6.1.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education – Agreements for Professional Services  
 
MEETING DATE: November 17, 2021 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Agreement for Professional Services for new and continuing services 
through the 2021-2022 regular school year.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Assembly Bill 130, Section 160, awarded funds to be allocated to Local Educational Agencies 
(LEAs) based on the pupil count of students with disabilities.  The purpose of these one-time 
funds is to support local educational agencies in conducting dispute prevention and voluntary 
alternative dispute resolution activities to prevent and resolve special education disputes 
resulting from school disruptions stemming from the COVID-19 public health emergency during 
the period of March 13, 2020, to September 1, 2021, inclusive. 
 


A need has been identified in the area of reading intervention for students whose academic 
challenges were compounded by distance learning.  To address and prevent disputes related to 
student progress in this area, a consultant is sought with specific expertise as related to 
providing evidence-based intervention to address dyslexia.  This consultant will provide 
coaching and consultation to special education teachers for the remainder of the school year. 
 
The Board is requested to approve the following Agreement for Professional Services:   
 


1) Steps To Success:   Academic support services and consultation at $19,250.00 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not To Exceed:  $19,250.00   AB130 (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


5/111







1 


AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES BETWEEN SANTA CRUZ CITY 


SCHOOLS AND STEPS TO SUCCESS EDUCATIONAL THERAPY 


This Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered as of this 17th day of November, 2021, by 


and between the Santa Cruz City Schools ("District") and Steps To Success Educational Therapy 


("Consultant") (collectively referred to as the "Parties" and each individually as "Party"). 


1. Recital 


1.1 Project. District desires Consultant to deliver Academic Coaching and 


Consultation services to up to five special education teachers (the "Project"). 


2. Terms. 


2.1 Scope of Services, Qualifications, and Term. 


(a) General Scope of Services. Consultant promises and agrees to furnish all labor, 


materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and customary work necessary 


to fully and adequately supply professional services, as more particularly described 


in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (collectively 


"Services"). All Services shall be subject to, and performed in accordance with, 


this Agreement, the Exhibits (attached hereto and incorporated herein by 


reference), and all applicable local, state, and federal laws, rules, and regulations. 


2.2 Term. The term of this Agreement shall be from November 1, 2021 


through June 15, 2022, unless terminated earlier as provided herein. The Parties may 


mutually agree to extend this term by written amendment. Should the Parties agree to 


extend the term of this Agreement, the fee for services described in Exhibit "B" shall 


remain the same. 


2.3 Responsibilities of Consultant. 


(a) Control and Payment of Consultants and its Subordinates. District retains 


Consultant on an independent contractor basis and Consultant is not an employee 


of the District. Any additional personnel performing the Services under this 


Agreement on behalf of Consultant shall at all times be under Consultant's 


exclusive direction and control. Consultant shall pay all wages, salaries, and other 


amounts due such personnel in connection with their performance of Services 


under this Agreement and as required by law including, but not limited to, the 


payment of prevailing wage as applicable and in accordance with Labor Code 


sections 1720 et seq. and 1770 et seq. 


(b) Conformance to Applicable Requirements. All work prepared by Consultant is 


subject to the approval of District and any and all applicable regulatory State 


agencies and shall be the property of District. 


6/111







2 


(c) Standard of Care. Consultant shall perform all Services under this Agreement in a 


skillful, competent, and timely manner consistent with the standards generally 


recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State 


of California. Consultant represents and maintains that it is skilled in the 


professional calling necessary to perform the Services. Consultant further 


represents that it has all licenses, permits, qualifications, and approvals of 


whatever nature that are legally required to perform the Services, and that such 


licenses and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this 


Agreement. 


2.4 Fees and Payments. 


(a) Compensation. Consultant shall receive compensation, including reimbursements, 


for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates set forth in Exhibit "B" 


attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference for a not-to-exceed price of 


nineteen thousand two hundred fifty ($19,250.00). Extra Work may be 


authorized, as described below and, if authorized, will be compensated at the rates 


and manner set forth in this Agreement. Consultant shall not be reimbursed for 


any expenses unless authorized in writing by District. 


(b) Payment of Compensation. Consultant shall submit to District an itemized invoice 


that indicates work completed and hours of services rendered by Consultant. 


District shall pay Consultant within a reasonable time and in accordance with this 


Agreement. All services through the last date of this agreement must be billed by 


June, 30, 2022. If not received by that date, invoices will not be paid. 


2.5 General Provisions. 


(a) Suspension of Services. The District may, in its sole discretion, suspend all or any 


part of Services provided hereunder without cost provided, however, that if the 


District shall suspend Services for a period of ninety (90) consecutive days or 


more and, in addition, such suspension is not caused by Consultant or the acts or 


omissions of Consultant. Upon recession of such suspension, the compensation 


will be subject to adjustment to provide for actual costs and expenses incurred by 


Consultant as a direct result of the suspension and resumption of Services under 


this Agreement. Consultant may not suspend its service without District's express 


written consent. 


(b) Termination of Agreement. 


(i) Grounds for Termination. District may, by written notice to Consultant, 


terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without 


cause by giving written notice to Consultant of such termination and 


specifying the effective date thereof at least seven (7) days before the 


effective date of such termination. Upon termination, Consultant shall be 


compensated only for those services that have been adequately rendered 


7/111







3 


to District, and Consultant shall be entitled to no further compensation. 


Consultant may not terminate this Agreement except for cause. 


(c) Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall defend 


(with counsel of District's choosing), indemnify, and hold the District, its 


officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents free and harmless from any 


and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage 


or injury of any kind, in law or equity, to property or persons, including wrongful 


death, in any manner arising out of, pertaining to, or incident to any alleged acts, 


errors, or omissions, or willful misconduct of Consultant, its officials, officers, 


employees, subcontractors, consultants or agents in connection with the 


performance of the Consultant's Services, the Project or this Agreement, including 


without limitation the payment of all consequential damages, expert witness fees 


and attorney fees and other related costs and expenses. Consultant shall reimburse 


District and its officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or volunteers, for any 


and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith 


or in enforcing the indemnity herein provided. Consultant's obligation to 


indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the 


District, its directors, officials officers, employees, agents, or volunteers. 


Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent Consultant's Services are subject to 


Civil Code Section 2782.8, the above indemnity shall be limited, to the extent 


required by Civil Code Section 2782.8, to claims that arise out of, pertain to, or 


relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the Consultant.  


Consultant agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the District. 


(d) Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the Parties 


with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations, 


understandings or agreements. 


(e) Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 


California. Any action brought to enforce the terms of this Agreement shall be 


brought in a state or federal court located in the County of Riverside, State of 


California. 


(f) Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding on the successors and 


assigns of the Parties and shall not be assigned by Consultant without the prior 


written consent of District. 


(g) Amendments/Waiver. This Agreement may not be amended except in writing 


signed by the District and Consultant. In order to take effect, amendments shall be 


approved or ratified by the District Board of Education. No waiver, alternation, or 


modification of the provisions of this Agreement shall be effective unless signed 


by both Parties. 


(h) Fingerprinting Requirements. Consultant hereby acknowledges that, if applicable, 


it is required to comply with the requirements of Education Code Section 45125. I 


with respect to fingerprinting employees who may have contact with the District's 


8/111







4 


pupils. The Consultant shall also ensure that its consultants on the Project also 


comply with the requirements of Section 45125.1. If required by Education Code 


Section 45125.1, the Consultant must provide for the completion of a Fingerprint 


Certification form, in the District's required format, prior to any of the 


Consultant's employees, or those of any other consultants, coming into contact 


with the District's pupils. Consultant further acknowledges that other 


fingerprinting requirements may apply (as set forth in Education Code Section 


45125 et seq.) and will comply with any such requirements. 


(i) Tuberculosis Testing. Consultant shall require that all regular and substitute 


employees provide verification of having been tested for tuberculosis and cleared 


to work with minors as evidenced by a state licensed medical doctor's signature 


prior to any of the Consultant's employees, or those of any other consultants, 


coming into contact with the District's pupils. Consultant shall keep a copy of said 


information in the employee file. 


(j) Confidentiality: Consultant hereby acknowledges that certain records and 


information maintained by the District, or by Consultant on behalf of the District, 


are protected by law and shall not be released to third parties without express 


authorization from the District. Such records include, but are not limited to, 


student records (i.e., any item of information relating to an identifiable student) 


and personnel records. In addition, all ideas, memoranda, plans, strategies, and 


documents shared with Consultant by District in connection with the performance 


of this Agreement, not generally known to the public, shall be held confidential 


by Consultant. Consultant agrees that information acquired by Consultant during 


meetings with the District's administrative team or during closed session Board 


discussions are deemed confidential and, except to the extent required by law, 


shall not be shared with third parties without express authorization from the 


District. 


(k) Drug/Tobacco Free Facilities. All District facilities are drug- and tobacco-free 


facilities. Any drug and/or tobacco use (smoked or smokeless) is prohibited at all 


times on all areas of District facilities. 


 Exhibits and Recitals. All Exhibits and Recitals contained herein are hereby 


incorporated into this Agreement by this reference. 


(m)  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of 


which shall constitute an original and all of which shall constitute one agreement. 


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement by their authorized 


officers as of the day and year first written above. 


9/111







5 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS STEPS TO SUCCESS ED THERAPY 


By:  By:  


Name: Kris Munro Name: Heather Sommerville 


Title: Superintendent                                          Title: Director, Educational Therapist  


Date: 11/17/2021          Date: 11/17/2021 


By: 


 


Name: Stacy O'Farrell Federal Tax I.D. Number 


Title: Director, Special Education Date: 


11/172021 


Board Approved: November 17, 2021


10/111







 


ExHIBIT "A" SCOPE OF SERVICES 


This agreement is meant to cover the time period from November 1, 2021 through June 15, 


2022. 


Consultant will deliver academic coaching and consultation to up to five teachers to support 


academic instruction.  


Consultant will provide the following: 


● Professional development regarding: 1) academic skill and processing  deficits related to 


learning disabilities, 2) instructional strategies to support skill acquisition, 3) curricular 


materials to support said instruction. 


● Coaching sessions will be a combination of direct coaching with identified teacher (s) 


and observation/direct instruction with student (s). 


● Consultant will meet with identified teacher (s) to provide the above professional 


development and coaching; including feedback from observations of instruction with 


student (s). 


  


11/111







 


 


EXHIBIT "B" 
COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES 


Total amount to be paid to Consultant: 


● Not to exceed $19,250.00 


 


12/111







AGENDA ITEM: 6.1.2. 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Special Education Contract – Agreement for Professional Services 
 
MEETING DATE: November 17, 2021 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Agreement for Professional Services for new and continuing services through the 
2021-2022 regular school year.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
Assembly Bill 130, Section 161, awarded funds to be allocated to Local Educational Agencies 
(LEAs) based on the pupil count of students with disabilities.  The purpose of these one-time 
funds is to provide learning recovery support to students, “associated with impacts to learning 
due to school disruptions stemming from the COVID-19 public health emergency during the 
period of March 13, 2020, to September 1, 2021, inclusive.” 
 


Our elementary school sites have identified a need to support student social development and 
acquisition of “student skills.”  Students have not had the opportunity to learn nor practice 
appropriate behavior at school due to distance learning.  Students with and without disabilities 
have demonstrated a need for skill building in this domain.   
 
The purpose of this contract is to secure behavior analytic and coaching support for students 
displaying a high level of need related to behavior in our elementary schools.  This coaching and 
support will provide direct support to students and will provide coaching and feedback to 
school site teams to build capacity to address increased behavioral needs on our school sites.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Behavior support services to up to 30 students - Not to exceed $39,655.00.   AB130 (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 


 
Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


13/111







1 


AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES BETWEEN SANTA CRUZ CITY 


SCHOOLS AND ABRITE 


This Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered as of this 17th day of November, 2021, by 


and between the Santa Cruz City Schools ("District") ABRITE 


(collectively referred to as the "Parties" and each individually as "Party"). 


1. Recital 


1.1 Project. District desires Consultant to deliver Behavior support services to 


up to thirty students (the "Project"). 


2. Terms. 


2.1 Scope of Services, Qualifications, and Term. 


(a) General Scope of Services. Consultant promises and agrees to furnish all labor, 


materials, tools, equipment, services, and incidental and customary work necessary 


to fully and adequately supply professional services, as more particularly described 


in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (collectively 


"Services"). All Services shall be subject to, and performed in accordance with, 


this Agreement, the Exhibits (attached hereto and incorporated herein by 


reference), and all applicable local, state, and federal laws, rules, and regulations. 


2.2 Term. The term of this Agreement shall be from November 1, 2021 


through June 15, 2022, unless terminated earlier as provided herein. The Parties may 


mutually agree to extend this term by written amendment. Should the Parties agree to 


extend the term of this Agreement, the fee for services described in Exhibit "B" shall 


remain the same. 


2.3 Responsibilities of Consultant. 


(a) Control and Payment of Consultants and its Subordinates. District retains 


Consultant on an independent contractor basis and Consultant is not an employee 


of the District. Any additional personnel performing the Services under this 


Agreement on behalf of Consultant shall at all times be under Consultant's 


exclusive direction and control. Consultant shall pay all wages, salaries, and other 


amounts due such personnel in connection with their performance of Services 


under this Agreement and as required by law including, but not limited to, the 


payment of prevailing wage as applicable and in accordance with Labor Code 


sections 1720 et seq. and 1770 et seq. 


(b) Conformance to Applicable Requirements. All work prepared by Consultant is 


subject to the approval of District and any and all applicable regulatory State 


agencies and shall be the property of District. 


14/111







2 


(c) Standard of Care. Consultant shall perform all Services under this Agreement in a 


skillful, competent, and timely manner consistent with the standards generally 


recognized as being employed by professionals in the same discipline in the State 


of California. Consultant represents and maintains that it is skilled in the 


professional calling necessary to perform the Services. Consultant further 


represents that it has all licenses, permits, qualifications, and approvals of 


whatever nature that are legally required to perform the Services, and that such 


licenses and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this 


Agreement. 


2.4 Fees and Payments. 


(a) Compensation. Consultant shall receive compensation, including reimbursements, 


for all Services rendered under this Agreement at the rates set forth in Exhibit "B" 


attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference for a not-to-exceed price of 


thirty-nine thousand, six hundred fifty-five dollars ($39,655.00).  Extra Work may 


be authorized, as described below and, if authorized, will be compensated at the 


rates and manner set forth in this Agreement. Consultant shall not be reimbursed 


for any expenses unless authorized in writing by District. 


(b) Payment of Compensation. Consultant shall submit to District an itemized invoice 


that indicates work completed and hours of services rendered by Consultant. 


District shall pay Consultant within a reasonable time and in accordance with this 


Agreement. All services through the last date of this agreement must be billed by 


June, 30, 2022. If not received by that date, invoices will not be paid. 


2.5 General Provisions. 


(a) Suspension of Services. The District may, in its sole discretion, suspend all or any 


part of Services provided hereunder without cost provided, however, that if the 


District shall suspend Services for a period of ninety (90) consecutive days or 


more and, in addition, such suspension is not caused by Consultant or the acts or 


omissions of Consultant. Upon recession of such suspension, the compensation 


will be subject to adjustment to provide for actual costs and expenses incurred by 


Consultant as a direct result of the suspension and resumption of Services under 


this Agreement. Consultant may not suspend its service without District's express 


written consent. 


(b) Termination of Agreement. 


(i) Grounds for Termination. District may, by written notice to Consultant, 


terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at any time and without 


cause by giving written notice to Consultant of such termination and 


specifying the effective date thereof at least seven (7) days before the 


effective date of such termination. Upon termination, Consultant shall be 


compensated only for those services that have been adequately rendered 


15/111







3 


to District, and Consultant shall be entitled to no further compensation. 


Consultant may not terminate this Agreement except for cause. 


(c) Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall defend 


(with counsel of District's choosing), indemnify, and hold the District, its 


officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents free and harmless from any 


and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage 


or injury of any kind, in law or equity, to property or persons, including wrongful 


death, in any manner arising out of, pertaining to, or incident to any alleged acts, 


errors, or omissions, or willful misconduct of Consultant, its officials, officers, 


employees, subcontractors, consultants or agents in connection with the 


performance of the Consultant's Services, the Project or this Agreement, including 


without limitation the payment of all consequential damages, expert witness fees 


and attorney fees and other related costs and expenses. Consultant shall reimburse 


District and its officials, officers, employees, agents, and/or volunteers, for any 


and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection therewith 


or in enforcing the indemnity herein provided. Consultant's obligation to 


indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the 


District, its directors, officials officers, employees, agents, or volunteers. 


Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent Consultant's Services are subject to 


Civil Code Section 2782.8, the above indemnity shall be limited, to the extent 


required by Civil Code Section 2782.8, to claims that arise out of, pertain to, or 


relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the Consultant.  


Consultant agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the District. 


(d) Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the Parties 


with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations, 


understandings or agreements. 


(e) Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 


California. Any action brought to enforce the terms of this Agreement shall be 


brought in a state or federal court located in the County of Riverside, State of 


California. 


(f) Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding on the successors and 


assigns of the Parties and shall not be assigned by Consultant without the prior 


written consent of District. 


(g) Amendments/Waiver. This Agreement may not be amended except in writing 


signed by the District and Consultant. In order to take effect, amendments shall be 


approved or ratified by the District Board of Education. No waiver, alternation, or 


modification of the provisions of this Agreement shall be effective unless signed 


by both Parties. 


(h) Fingerprinting Requirements. Consultant hereby acknowledges that, if applicable, 


it is required to comply with the requirements of Education Code Section 45125. I 


with respect to fingerprinting employees who may have contact with the District's 


16/111







4 


pupils. The Consultant shall also ensure that its consultants on the Project also 


comply with the requirements of Section 45125.1. If required by Education Code 


Section 45125.1, the Consultant must provide for the completion of a Fingerprint 


Certification form, in the District's required format, prior to any of the 


Consultant's employees, or those of any other consultants, coming into contact 


with the District's pupils. Consultant further acknowledges that other 


fingerprinting requirements may apply (as set forth in Education Code Section 


45125 et seq.) and will comply with any such requirements. 


(i) Tuberculosis Testing. Consultant shall require that all regular and substitute 


employees provide verification of having been tested for tuberculosis and cleared 


to work with minors as evidenced by a state licensed medical doctor's signature 


prior to any of the Consultant's employees, or those of any other consultants, 


coming into contact with the District's pupils. Consultant shall keep a copy of said 


information in the employee file. 


(j) Confidentiality: Consultant hereby acknowledges that certain records and 


information maintained by the District, or by Consultant on behalf of the District, 


are protected by law and shall not be released to third parties without express 


authorization from the District. Such records include, but are not limited to, 


student records (i.e., any item of information relating to an identifiable student) 


and personnel records. In addition, all ideas, memoranda, plans, strategies, and 


documents shared with Consultant by District in connection with the performance 


of this Agreement, not generally known to the public, shall be held confidential 


by Consultant. Consultant agrees that information acquired by Consultant during 


meetings with the District's administrative team or during closed session Board 


discussions are deemed confidential and, except to the extent required by law, 


shall not be shared with third parties without express authorization from the 


District. 


(k) Drug/Tobacco Free Facilities. All District facilities are drug- and tobacco-free 


facilities. Any drug and/or tobacco use (smoked or smokeless) is prohibited at all 


times on all areas of District facilities. 


 Exhibits and Recitals. All Exhibits and Recitals contained herein are hereby 


incorporated into this Agreement by this reference. 


(m)  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of 


which shall constitute an original and all of which shall constitute one agreement. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement by their 


authorized officers as of the day and year first written above. 


17/111







5 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS ABRITE  


By:  By:  


Name: Kris Munro Name: Dr. Ginger Raabe 


Title: Superintendent                                           Title: Director 


Date: 11/17/2021          Date: 11/17/2021 


By: 


 


Name: Stacy O'Farrell Federal Tax I.D. Number 


Title: Director, Special Education Date: 


11/17/2021 


Board Approved: November 17, 2021


18/111







 


ExHIBIT "A" SCOPE OF SERVICES 


This agreement is meant to cover the time period from November 1, 2021 through June 15, 


2022. 


Consultant will deliver behavior support services to up to thirty students as determined by the 


school site referral process.  


Consultant will provide the following: 


● Behavior analytic support in the form of observation and data collection for students 


referred for this project 


● Coaching and feedback to site teams implementing behavior support strategies and skill-


based instruction 


● Preparation of materials for the purposes of instruction and coaching 


 


  


19/111







 


EXHIBIT "B" 
COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES 


Total amount to be paid to Consultant: 


Not to exceed $39,655.00 


 


20/111







AGENDA ITEM: 6.1.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Student Services – BeyondSST Contract 
 
MEETING DATE: November 17, 2021 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached contract to provide access to BeyondSST, an electronic forms and storage 
product to support Santa Cruz City Schools’ Student Study Team and Section 504 procedures 
and systems. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools is updating its forms and procedures related to Student Study Teams 
(SSTs) and Section 504 plans.  One aspect of the system that we are refining is our forms and 
data storage.  BeyondSST provides electronic forms and storage of data, something we are 
currently lacking.  Access to this product will align sites use of forms and procedures used and 
will provide central and site-based data analysis of plans and services. This data will allow for 
the identification of intervention strengths and challenges and support overall progress 
monitoring of SST and 504 plans.  The product will also support internal communication about 
student accommodations with staff. 
 
Three school sites will be piloting BeyondSST for the 2021-22 school year: Westlake, Branciforte 
Middle School and Santa Cruz High School. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not To Exceed:  $5,701.00   Medi-Cal Activities Administrative Program (MAA) (Restricted) 
 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 


Prepared by Gail Atlansky, Director of Student Services 


21/111







 


 1 


 


SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 


STUDENT SUCCESS TEAM MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 


LICENSE AGREEMENT 


This License Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into this 8th day of November, 2021, by and between 
the San Joaquin County Office of Education, a county office of education of the state of California, 
(hereinafter “Provider”) and the Santa Cruz City Schools (hereinafter “Customer”), (collectively 
hereinafter “Parties”).  
 


INTRODUCTION 
 


WHEREAS, the Provider is the operator and owner of a web-based suite of tools, known as the Student 
Success Team System Management System (hereinafter “BEYOND SST”), for use by schools, school 
districts and county offices of education in formulating, updating, tracking, storing and reporting on Pupil 
Records, including, but not limited to, Student Success Team and 504 forms. 


WHEREAS, Customer is interested in contracting with Provider in order to use BEYOND SST in 
Customer’s region. 


NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 


ARTICLE I  
DEFINITIONS 


1.1 “BEYOND SST” means the BEYOND SST System, which is a full-featured system for formulating, 
updating, tracking, storing, and reporting on student data and Student Success Team and 504 forms. 


1.2  “Administrative Contact” means the individual authorized by Customer to receive and provide 
information required to administer this Agreement. 


1.3 “Adult Pupil” means a Pupil who has reached 18 years of age. 


1.4 “Agreement” means this License Agreement. 


1.5 “Authorized User” means the individual(s) authorized to access BEYOND SST on behalf of the 
Customer according to the terms of this Agreement. 


1.6 “Customer Data” means documents, information, data, including Pupil Records submitted to Provider 
by Customer for processing through BEYOND SST and/or documents, information, and data input or 
maintained in BEYOND SST by Customer. 


1.7 “Deidentified Information” means information that cannot be used to identify an individual pupil. 


1.8 “Effective Date” means the date upon which this Agreement has been executed by both the Provider 
and the Customer. 


1.9  “Password” means the License code provided to Customer’s Authorized Users to enable access to 
BEYOND SST. 


22/111







 


 2 


 


1.10  “Parent” means a natural parent, an adopted parent or legal guardian of a Pupil. 


1.11  “Pupil” or “Pupils” means a student or students of Customer. 


1.12  “Personal User Identification” means the identification code given to Customer’s Authorized 
Users. 


1.13  “Personally Identifiable Information” includes: 1) the Pupil’s name, 2) the name of the Pupil’s 
parent or other family members, 3) the address of the Pupil or Pupil’s family, 4) a personal identifier, 
such as a Pupil’s social security number, Pupil’s number, or biometric record, 5) other indirect 
identifiers, such as the Pupil’s date of birth, place of birth, and mother’s maiden name, 6) other 
information that, alone or in combination, is linked or linkable to a specific Pupil that would allow a 
reasonable person in the school community, who does not have personal knowledge of the relevant 
circumstances, to identify the Pupil with reasonable certainty, or 7) information requested by a person 
who the educational agency or institution reasonably believes knows the identity of the Pupil to whom 
the Pupil Record relates. 


1.14 “Pupil Records” means both of the following: 1) any information directly related to a Pupil that is 
maintained by Provider, including Personally Identifiable Information, and 2) any information acquired 
directly from the Pupil through the use of instructional software or applications assigned to the Pupil 
by a teacher or other Customer employee.  “Pupil Records” does not mean aggregated Deidentified 
Information used by Provider for the following purposes: to improve educational products for adaptive 
learning purposes and for customizing Pupil learning; to demonstrate the effectiveness of Provider’s 
products in the marketing of those products; or for the development and improvement of educational 
sites, services, or applications.    


1.15  “SELPA” means Customer’s Special Education Local Plan Area. 


1.16  “Team” means the dedicated team providing early identification and early intervention for 
students.   


1.17  “System Launch Date” means the earlier of:  a) the date the BEYOND SST system is ready for 
use by Customer at the conclusion of the first training session as described in Section 2.6.1 (a) of this 
Agreement; or b) one hundred twenty (120) days after the Effective Date.   


1.18 “Training Unit” means one day of training, Administrator or Teacher, whether it is one single all day 
session or multiple sessions within a single day (not to exceed 8 total hours total within a day).  


ARTICLE II 
BEYOND SST  SERVICES 


2.1 Commencing on the Effective Date, Customer shall have the nonexclusive right, for the purposes and 
subject to the terms and conditions stated in this Agreement, for Customer’s Authorized Users to obtain 
access to and use of BEYOND SST at www.Beyond SST.org. 


2.2 BEYOND SST is a full-featured system for formulating, updating, tracking, storing, and reporting on 
student data and Student Success Team and 504 forms. 


2.3 Implementation Steps and Timelines:  The following steps, Implementation Meeting, Dataload and 
Training will be undertaken to implement use of BEYOND SST by the Customer after the Effective 
Date of this Agreement. See Appx “C” for Implementation Timeline Agreement. 


23/111







 


 3 


 


2.4 Implementation Meeting 


(a) This mandatory planning meeting may be held at the Customer’s location, and must be held 
within 120 days of the Effective date of this contract, unless specific arrangements have been made to do 
otherwise. 


(b) Specific due dates for data submission and System Manager/SST Coordinator Training will be 
established at the Implementation Meeting, using the form set forth in Appendix “C”.  Failure by the 
Customer to supply data by the dates established may result in additional fees and cancelled or delayed 
trainings. 


2.5 Customer Data Submission and Loading 


(a) Customer submits to Provider the Customer Data for loading which meets the Beyond SST data 
structure specifications requested by Provider. 


(b) Customer Data shall be submitted on provided Excel templates and shall be complete for all 
participating districts noted on Appx. B. 


(c)  Files for all participating districts will be merged rather than being submitted by individual 
participating districts. 


 2.6 Dataload Phase 1, District and Schools.  The following Phase 1 Dataload files are to be provided by 
Customer for loading no later than 15 days from the Implementation Meeting Date. 


  (a). Verify or supply details of all districts participating under this agreement, listed on Appx. B 


  (b).  Verify or supply details of all schools within the districts that are participating under this 
agreement,  listed on Appx. B 


 2.7 Dataload Phase 2, Authorized Users.  The following Phase 2 Dataload files are to be provided by 
Customer for loading no later than 30 days from the Implementation Meeting Date. 


  (a). All authorized SELPA Level users (Optional) 


  (b). All authorized District Level users for each district participating under this agreement, listed 
on Appx. B 


(c). All authorized School Site level users including Administrative/Clerical and SST Coordinators 
for each participating school from each district participating under this agreement, listed on Appx 
B 


(d). All authorized Teacher Level users for each participating school from each district participating 
under this agreement, listed on Appx. B 


2.8 Dataload Phase 3, Student Files.  The following Phase 3 Dataload files are to be provided by Customer 
for loading no later than 35 days from the Implementation Meeting Date, and no later than 15 working days 
before the first System Manager Training date. 


24/111







 


 4 


 


(a). To the best of their ability client shall provide a listing of students who currently have an active 
504 plan, an active SST and any students who are being considered for an SST or are receiving 
early interventions in the classroom. 


NOTE:  This dataload does not include every district student. 


  (b). Any teachers included on the Student File must also be submitted on the Teacher file in Phase  


 2.9  Delays and Subsequent Dataloads.  In the event the data submission deadline falls on a weekend or 
holiday, the data will be deliverable on the first workday after.  Any dataloads subsequent to the established 
Phase 1, 2 and 3 dates may be subject to additional fees.  In the event that Customer delays the submission 
of student data, authorized user information or district/school data more than one (1) time beyond an agreed 
upon submission date, Customer may be billed a penalty of Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars ($750.) per day 
for each day of delay.  Provider retains the right to refuse to do any loading of data provided after training 
has begun.  


  NOTE:  Any data submitted to Provider that does not match data structure specifications requested 
by Provider may be subject to a new agreement.  Loading of any additional Student Data other than what 
is provided on the Excel Dataload file templates may also be subject to a new agreement.    


2.10  Training:  Provider will make every effort to accommodate Customer’s desired training dates, 
however trainings are scheduled based on availability of Provider staff. 


Under this Agreement, Provider will provide four (4) Training Units, including at least one (1) unit of 
System Management/SST Coordinator Training.  Additional training units may be purchased (subject to 
availability of schedule). 


2.11 System Management/SST Coordinator Level Training. 


2.12 Teacher Training (Direct or Training of Trainers). 


2.13 System Management Level Training - To be held within 60 days of the Implementation Meeting and 
within 180 days of the Effective Date. 


(a). The System is considered “Launched” (System Launch Date) on the date of the System 
Management Training, 


(b). To be scheduled by the Customer no more than 20 days before the beginning of Teacher Level 
Training. 


(c). Sessions will last approximately six hours and will be conducted in a computer lab setting with 
groups of 20 to 25 users.   


(d). System Management Level Training must be completed prior to Teacher Training.   


2.14 Teacher Training, TOT or Direct 


  (a). To be scheduled by the Customer no more than 20 days after the System Management training. 


  (b). Unless a different agreement is made between Customer and Provider at the Implementation 
Meeting,  Teacher Trainings are to be scheduled to begin no more than 20 days after System 


25/111







 


 5 


 


Management training. 


(c). Teacher TOT sessions last approximately 6 hours and will be conducted in a computer lab 
setting with groups of 20-25 users 


(d). Direct, on site, Teacher Level Training sessions last approximately 3 hours and will be 
conducted in a computer lab setting with groups of 20-25 users.  If completed on the same day, two 
Teacher Level Sessions will be considered one unit.   


2.15  Hosting, Enhancement and Maintenance.  


(a) BEYOND SST will be hosted for the Customer for a period of thirty-six (36) months commencing 
with the System Launch Date. 


(b)  Customer can choose to use any forms currently available in the system for no extra charge for 
programming or maintenance fee increases, as long as the forms are used as-is with no changes.   


(c) Help Desk Services:  Both telephone and online Help Desk service will be provided for the duration 
of this Agreement.  Help Desk hours are Monday through Friday 8:00 a.m. through 5:00 p.m., 
excluding Provider’s holidays.  During these hours, Provider shall endeavor to respond to Help Desk 
inquires within 24 hours of receipt (weekends and holidays excluded). 


(d) It is anticipated that enhancements to BEYOND SST will be ongoing.  


2.16  It is understood and agreed that maintenance may be required from time to time and Provider will 
endeavor to provide Customer with reasonable prior notice of such maintenance by posting such notice 
on the home page of BEYOND SST.  It is also understood that emergency maintenance may be required 
and, in such case, prior notice of such maintenance will not be provided to Customers. 


ARTICLE III 
LICENSE FEE AND PAYMENT TERMS 


3.1      License Fee:  In consideration for the license to obtain access to and use BEYOND SST as provided 
herein, Customer agrees to pay Provider the License and Set Up Fees as specified in Appendix “A” and 
calculated based on the most recent CBEDS enrollment count reported to the state of California for the 
Customer and any related entities listed in Appendix “B”, as of the current fiscal year.  Provider reserves 
the right to charge the Provider’s standard implementation fee should the Customer agree to a new 
Agreement at a later date. 


3.2 Payment Terms:  


(a) Customer shall be invoiced for the Year One License Fee and Setup Fee upon the Provider’s initial 
receipt of Customer Data for the amount of Five Thousand and Seventy-One Dollars ($5,071) 


(b) Customer shall remit payment to Provider within thirty (30) calendar days of Customer’s receipt 
of invoices. 


NOTE: 10% Discount applied. 


ARTICLE IV 
TERM AND TERMINATION 


26/111







 


 6 


 


4.1 This Agreement shall be in effect between the Provider and the Customer beginning with the Effective 
Date and terminating twelve (12) months from the Effective Date. (“Initial Term”). The Initial Term 
may be extended pursuant to written agreement between Provider and Customer. 


4.2 In addition to the right to terminate pursuant to Article XII, either Provider or Customer may terminate 
this Agreement upon at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other party, with such 
termination under this Section 4.2 to be effective at the end of the current period for which Customer 
has paid License Fees when the notice of termination is provided.   


4.3 The provisions under which this Agreement may be terminated shall be in addition to any and all other 
legal remedies which either party may have for the enforcement of any and all terms hereof, and do not 
in any way limit any other legal remedy such party may have. 


ARTICLE V 
CONTENT AND USE OF BEYOND SST 


5.1 The Customer shall have the right to provide Customer Data to Provider for inclusion in BEYOND 
SST as follows: 


(a) Customer is authorized to submit Customer Data to BEYOND SST.  By submission of 
Customer Data to Provider, Customer grants Provider a nonexclusive, royalty-free license to 
include the Customer Data in Provider’s BEYOND SST for use by Customer’s Authorized 
Users of BEYOND SST, with such use to include, but not be limited to copying, displaying, 
modifying, and preparation of reports under the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 


(b) Customer hereby warrants and represents that such Customer Data does not violate any 
intellectual property rights or privacy rights of third parties.  Customer hereby agrees to 
indemnify, defend and hold harmless Provider from any and all liability associated with 
Provider’s inclusion of Customer Data in BEYOND SST.  Customer further assumes sole 
responsibility for compliance with all intellectual property and privacy laws by any Authorized 
Users of the customer. 


(c) Customer shall have the right to possession of its Customer Data and Ownership and Control 
of Customer Data, Including Pupil Records.  At all times during the term of this Agreement 
and after the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement as set forth in Section 4.2, all 
Pupil Records remain the exclusive property of Customer and Customer retains exclusive 
rights, ownership and control thereto. 


(d) Use of Pupil Records.  Provider shall not use any Pupil Records to which it has access by way 
of this Agreement for any purpose other than those required or specifically permitted by this 
Agreement. 


(e) Review and Correction of Pupil Records.  A Parent or Adult Pupil may review his/her Pupil 
Records that are retained, stored, hosted, accessed or used by Provider by making a request in 
writing to Customer for access to the subject Pupil Records.  Subject to Customer verification 
of identity, approval of disclosure and redaction of any Personally Identifiable Information of 
a Pupil other than the Pupil of the Parent or Adult Pupil, who is making the request, Customer 
will direct Provider to provide access to any/all requested Pupil Records within five (5) 
business days or as otherwise required by law, by issuing the Parent or Adult Pupil a temporary 
user name and password to log on to the Provider’s software/information system to review the 
requested Pupil Records.  This time frame may be extended by written consent of the Parent or 


27/111







 


 7 


 


Adult Pupil.  A Parent or Adult Pupil may submit written corrections to Pupil Records retained, 
stored, hosted, accessed or used by Provider to Customer.  Customer shall have exclusive 
authority over Provider with respect to authorizing disclosure of Pupil Records pursuant to this 
Agreement.   


(f) A Parent or Adult Pupil may correct erroneous information identified upon review of Pupil 
Records by making a written request to Customer.  Subject to Customer’s verification of 
identity and approval of such a request to correct the erroneous information, Customer shall 
notify Provider of the approved request and direct Provider to correct the erroneous 
information.  Provider will not make any modification to Pupil Records unless specifically 
directed to do so by Customer.  Provider shall direct all requests to review and/or correct 
erroneous information to Customer through the following contact information: 


Gail Atlansky 


(831) 429-3410 


gatlansky@sccs.net 


133 Mission Street, Ste. 100, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 


5.2  Targeted Advertising Prohibited.  Provider shall not use any Customer Data, including Pupil Records, 
to engage in targeted advertising during the term of this Agreement, and this provision survives the 
termination of this Agreement.                    


ARTICLE VI 
PROVIDER’S PROPRIETARY RIGHTS IN 


BEYOND SST/NONDISCLOSURE 


6.0 Customer acknowledges that BEYOND SST is the property of the Provider and that the value of 
BEYOND SST is in part determined by the Provider’s ability to limit access to and use of BEYOND 
SST. 


6.1 Except as specifically allowed in this Section 6.2, Customer agrees not to disclose or make available 
to any    third party any of Provider’s proprietary property to which Customer is granted access pursuant to 
this Agreement, including, without limitation, manuals and instructions for operation of BEYOND SST, 
knowledge of operating methods, Passwords, Personal User Identification, and the names and designations 
of any equipment comprising the system.  Customer may grant, to a Third Party Service Provider, access 
to Provider’s proprietary property described in this Section 6.2 on the condition that the Third Party Service 
Provider agrees to comply with the Customer’s obligations under this Agreement. 


6.2 To further protect the Provider’s proprietary rights in BEYOND SST, Customer agrees to restrict 
access to BEYOND SST to Customer’s Authorized Users. In addition, Customer agrees to advise each 
Authorized User before he or she receives access to BEYOND SST, of the obligations of Customer under 
this Agreement and require each Authorized User to maintain those obligations.  Each Authorized User 
shall agree to the Terms of Use required of all users of the website before accessing the BEYOND SST 
website. 


6.3 Customer’s Authorized Users are prohibited from accessing or using BEYOND SST for any 
purpose other than to serve the Customer in connection with this Agreement.  If an Authorized User uses 
BEYOND SST for any unauthorized purpose, the use shall be deemed a breach of this Agreement. 


28/111







 


 8 


 


6.4 BEYOND SST and all supporting documentation shall remain the property of the Provider, 
excluding Customer Data, which includes Pupil Records, provided by Customer. 


ARTICLE VII 
PROTECTION OF PRIVATE CUSTOMER DATA 


7.1 Customer and Provider recognize that some Customer Data contains Pupil Records and are confidential 
pursuant to relevant federal and state law, including but not limited to 20 USC section 1232(g) and 
Education Code sections 49060, et seq.  Both Customer and Provider certify they will each abide by all 
applicable state and federal laws concerning Pupil Records. 


7.2 Customer shall inform each Authorized User of the need to protect Customer Data containing Pupil 
Records.  Customer agrees not to disclose or make available to any third party any Pupil Records to which 
Customer’s Authorized users are granted access pursuant to this Agreement. 


7.3 To further protect Customer Data, Customer agrees to restrict access to BEYOND SST to 
Customer’s Authorized Users.  In addition, Customer agrees to advise each Authorized User before he or 
she receives access to BEYOND SST, of the obligations of Customer under this Agreement, and will require 
each Authorized User to maintain those obligations. 


7.4 Any failure by an Authorized User to protect Pupil Records shall deemed a breach of this 
Agreement. 


7.5 All Customer Data, including Pupil Records shall remain the property of Customer. 


7.6 Security and Confidentiality of Pupil Records.  Provider will do the following to ensure the security 
and confidentiality of Pupil Records: 


(a)Designate an employee responsible for the training and compliance of all Provider employees, 
agents, and assigns on compliance with security and confidentiality provisions detailed in this Agreement.   


(b)Provider will protect the confidentiality of Pupil Records and take all reasonably necessary 
measures consistent with industry standards to protect Customer Data from any and all unauthorized access 
and disclosures.   


(c)Provider has designated an individual responsible for training Provider employees, agents and 
assigns on reasonable protection measures and the confidentiality of Pupil Records consistent with state 
and federal law.   


(d)Provider shall not disclose Pupil Records, except as specified under the terms of this Agreement 
or as required by law.   


(f)Provider shall develop, implement, maintain and use appropriate administrative, technical and 
physical security measures to preserve the confidentiality, integrity and availability of all stored, managed, 
retained, accessed or used Pupil Records received from or on behalf of Customer and/or Pupils.   


(g)Provider warrants that all confidentiality and security measures identified in this Agreement will 
be extended by contract to any and all subcontractors used by Provider, if any, to execute the terms of this 
Agreement.   


(h)Provider warrants that all Pupil Records will be encrypted in transmission and storage. 


29/111







 


 9 


 


(i)Provider will use appropriate and reliable storage media, which shall include weekly backup of 
all input provided by Customer and offsite storage of backup material for a 30-day period. 


7.7 Unauthorized Disclosure Notifications.  In the event of an unauthorized disclosure of Pupil Records, 
the following process will be followed: 


(a)Immediately upon becoming aware of a compromise of Pupil Records, or of circumstances that 
could have resulted in an unauthorized access to or disclosure of Pupil Records, Customer and Provider 
agree to notify the other Party, fully investigate the incident and fully cooperate with the other Party’s 
investigation of the incident, implement remedial measures and respond in a timely manner.   


7.8 Parent or Adult Pupil will be immediately notified of: 


(a)The nature of the unauthorized use or disclosure (e.g., security breach, nonconsensual re-
disclosure, etc.); 


(b)The specific Pupil Records that were used or disclosed without authorization; 


(c)What Provider and Customer have done or will do to mitigate any effects of the unauthorized 
use or disclosure; and 


(d)What corrective action Provider and Customer have taken or will take to prevent future 
occurrences. 


 


7.9  Except as otherwise required by law, Provider will not provide notice of the incident directly to the 
Parent or Adult Pupil whose Pupil Records were involved, regulatory agencies, or other entities, 
without prior written permission from Customer. 


7.10  Compliance with Applicable Laws.  Customer Data, includes Pupil Records subject to the Family 
Educational Rights and Privacy Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1232g).  Provider recognizes that as a county office 
of education and public entity, Provider is considered a “School Official” (as the term is used in FERPA 
and its implementing regulations) for any and all software, hosting and services provided to Customer 
through this Agreement. The Parties agree that the services provided to Customer through this 
Agreement serve a “legitimate educational interest,” as defined and used in FERPA and its 
implementing regulations.  The Parties agree to jointly ensure compliance with FERPA, its 
implementing regulations and Pupil privacy and confidentiality requirements of California law, 
including but not limited to Education Code section 49060 et. seq.  The Parties shall comply with the 
following process for compliance with FERPA and California law: 


Provider and Customer warrant that they are familiar with the confidentiality, security and 
disclosure requirements of FERPA, its implementing regulations and Pupil privacy and 
confidentiality requirements of California law, including but not limited to Education Code section 
49060 et. seq. and have designated an individual responsible for ensuring compliance therewith. 


Provider and Customer shall abide by the disclosure, security, breach notification, 
retention/destruction and use provisions contained in this Agreement and as required by law. 


By the signature of its authorized representative or agent below, Provider hereby acknowledges 
that Customer has provided notice under Education Code section 49075(a) and 34 C.F.R. section 


30/111







 


 10 


 


99.33(d) that Provider is strictly prohibited from disclosing Pupil Records from Customer to any 
third party without the prior written consent and direction to authorize disclosure by Customer. 


Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of termination of this Agreement, or within thirty (30) 
days from completion of this Agreement, Provider warrants that it will securely transmit all 
Customer Data, including Pupil Records, to Customer in ASCII delimited file format or other 
mutually agreed format, without retaining any copies of Customer Data. In the alternative, and 
subject to a written request from Customer, Provider will securely destroy all Customer Data, 
including Pupil Records, upon termination of this Agreement.  Provider will then provide 
verification to Customer that the Customer Data not otherwise returned to Customer was destroyed 
pursuant to Customer’s written request, the date of destruction and the method of destruction. 


ARTICLE VIII 
PERSONAL USER IDENTIFICATION AND PASSWORD PROVIDED 


8.0 Customer’s Authorized Users shall gain access to BEYOND SST via the Internet through the 
Authorized Users’ Personal User Identification and Password.  


8.1  Immediately following the initial data loading of Authorized Users, Customer shall assume sole 
responsibility for the management of Personal User Identification and Passwords for all Customers’ 
Authorized Users.  The Customers’ Administrative Contact, or designee at either the SELPA or school 
district level, shall be responsible for ensuring that Personal User Identification and Passwords are provided 
only to Authorized Users and for managing, disabling or authorizing new Authorized Users Personal User 
Identification and Passwords. 


ARTICLE IX 
PASSWORD USE AND SECURITY 


9.0 Customer agrees to assume sole responsibility for the security of the Passwords issued to it.  Customer 
is solely responsible for disabling lost or stolen Passwords and Personal User Identification and for 
disabling user accounts that are no longer active.  


ARTICLE X 
LIABILITY FOR FAILURES OR DELAYS 


10.0 Customer agrees that Provider shall not be liable in any way for any delays or failures in 
performance or for any interruption of Provider’s service and further agrees to indemnify and hold 
Provider harmless from any loss or claims or loss arising out of the use of Provider’s service or any 
materials provided under this Agreement. 


ARTICLE XI 
WARRANTY DISCLAIMER 


11.0  PROVIDER MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND 
WITH RESPECT TO SERVICES, DOCUMENTS, OR DATA MADE AVAILABLE BY 
PROVIDER, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE WARRANTIES OF FITNESS FOR 
A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR MERCHANTABILITY.  PROVIDER ASSUMES NO 
RESPONSIBILITY IN CONNECTION WITH THE USE OF ANY OF THE SERVICES, 
DOCUMENTS, OR DATA MADE AVAILABLE BY PROVIDER.  CUSTOMER AGREES 
THAT PROVIDER SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, 
INDIRECT, PUNITIVE, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OR FOR THE LOSS OF 


31/111







 


 11 


 


PROFIT, REVENUE OR DATA ARISING OUT OF THE SUBJECT MATTER OF THIS 
AGREEMENT, EVEN IF CUSTOMER HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF 
POTENTIAL LOSS OR DAMAGE. 


ARTICLE XII 
DEFAULT 


12.0  Events Of Default.  This Agreement may be terminated by the nondefaulting party if any of the 
following events occur:  (1) if a party materially fails to perform or comply with this Agreement or any 
provision hereof; (2) if a party becomes insolvent or admits in writing its inability to pay its debts as 
they mature, or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; (3) if a petition under any foreign, 
state or United States bankruptcy act, receivership statute, or the like, as they now exist, or as they may 
be amended, is filed by a party; or (4) if such a petition is filed by any third party, or an application for 
a receiver is made by anyone and such petition or application is not resolved favorably within 
ninety (90) days. 


12.1 Obligations On Termination By Default.  Within ten (10) days after termination of this Agreement, 
Customer shall cease and desist use of BEYOND SST.  Provider reserves the right to disable any and all 
Passwords issued to Customer upon Customer’s default herein. 


ARTICLE XIII 
NOTICES 


13.1  All notices, authorizations, and requests in connection with this Agreement shall be deemed given 
(i) five (5) days after being deposited in the U.S. mail, postage prepaid, certified or registered, return 
receipt requested; or (ii) one (1) day after being sent by overnight courier, charges prepaid, with 
confirming fax; and addressed as first set forth below or to such other address as the party to receive 
the notice so designates by written notice to the other party. 


Provider      Customer 


Name: San Joaquin County Office of Education   Name: Santa Cruz City Schools 


Attn: Johnny Arguelles     Attn: Stacy O’Farrell, Director 
          Director, CodeStack             Special Education  
     


Address: P.O. Box 213030    Address: 133 Mission Street, Suite 100  
                Stockton, CA 95213            Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
 


Phone: (209) 468-5924     Phone: (831) 429-3410  
Fax: (209) 468-9235     Fax:  


 


 


 


  


32/111







 


 12 


 


ARTICLE XIV 
INDEMNITY 


14.0  In addition to the provisions stated above in Article V, X and XI, Customer agrees to defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless Provider and its Board of Education, Board members, directors, officers, 
employees and agents from and against all damages, costs (including reasonable attorneys’ fees), 
judgments and any other expenses arising out of or on account of any third party claim resulting or 
arising from Customer’s use of BEYOND SST, or Customer’s breach of any terms of this Agreement 
either by intentional misconduct or negligence of Customer’s directors, officers, employees or agents. 


ARTICLE XV 
GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION AND VENUE 


15.0  The validity, interpretation, construction and performance of this Agreement shall be governed by 
the laws of the state of California. 


15.1 The California state court, County of San Joaquin, shall have exclusive jurisdiction and venue over 
any dispute arising out of this Agreement, and Customer hereby consents to the jurisdiction of such courts. 


ARTICLE XVI 
SEVERABILITY 


16.0  If any provisions of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, legality and enforceability of the 
remaining provisions shall not be in any way affected or impaired thereby. 


ARTICLE XVII 
NONASSIGNABILITY 


17.0  This Agreement shall be binding upon, inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective 
successors and assigns; provided, however that the rights and benefits conferred upon Customer 
hereunder may not be assigned or otherwise transferred by Customer without prior written consent of 
the Provider.  


ARTICLE XVIII 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT 


18.0  This Agreement embodies the entire understanding of the parties and supersedes all previous 
communications, representations, or understandings, either oral or written, between the parties relating 
to the subject matter herein. 


ARTICLE XIX 
MODIFICATIONS 


19.0  This Agreement may not be supplemented, modified, amended, released or discharged except by 
an instrument in writing signed by each party’s duly authorized representatives. 


33/111







 


 13 


 


ARTICLE XX 
NONWAIVER OF RIGHTS 


20.0  Customer and Provider agree that no failure to exercise and no delay in exercising any right, power, 
or privilege on the part of either party shall operate as a waiver of any right, power or privilege under 
this Agreement.  Customer and Provider further agree that no single or partial exercise of any right, 
power, or privilege under this Agreement shall preclude further exercise thereof. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused their duly authorized representatives to execute this 
Agreement as of the date first set forth above. 


Provider     Customer 


SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY OFFICE OF SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS  
EDUCATION SCHOOL 
 
By: _______________________  By: ______________________  


Name: Johnny Arguelles   Name: Gail Atlansky    


Title: Director, CodeStack   Title: Director of Student Service  


Date:      Date:      


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


34/111







 


 14 


 


                     APPENDIX “A” 


 
2021 FEE SCHEDULE 


 
 


 
ANNUAL LICENSE AND MAINTENANCE FEES: 


 
 
 


SST & 504 
 


$1.00 per Student Based on CBEDS ADA ($2,500 Min.) 
Year 1 Setup Fee 25% of ADA ($2,500 Min.) 


Setup Fee Covers Implementation, Data Load and Training 
 


 


 
 
 


 


35/111







 


 15 


 


APPENDIX “B” 
 


ALL PARTICIPATING DISTRICTS COVERED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT 
 


TOTAL NUMBER OF DISTRICTS: 1 
 


TOTAL STUDENT COUNT FOR COMBINED DISTRICTS: 3,134 
 
 


ENTITY NAME STARTING ADA COUNT 
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 3,134 


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


  


 
 
Initial Below: 
 
Provider:  _________ 
 
Customer:  _________ 


36/111







 


 16 


 


APPENDIX “C” 
IMPLEMENTATION TIMELINE AGREEMENT 


 
 
 
Customer will receive a copy of this form at or before the Implementation Meeting.   
 
At the Implementation Meeting timelines will be established for each phase of the implementation. 
 
** Any variation of training timeline must be agreed to by Customer and Provider at the Implementation 
Meeting. 
 
Missed deadlines may result in delayed trainings and additional fees. 
 
 


Event Date  


Effective Date  
This is the date of the Customer signature on this agreement. 


  


Implementation Meeting Date 
Must be within 60 days of the Effective Date 


  


Phase 1  District and School Data Verification/Submission 
Must be within 15 days of the Implementation Meeting Date 


  


Phase 2 System Users Data Submission 
Must be within 30 days of the Implementation Meeting Date 


  


Phase 3 Student Data Submission 
Must be within 35 days of the Implementation Meeting Date At least 15 
working days before the System Management Training 


  


   
System Management & SST Coordinator Training Date 
Must be within 60 days of the Implementation Meeting Date  
Must be within 180 days of the Effective Date 
** Within 20 days before Teacher Training begins 


  


Teacher Training   


Teacher Training   


Teacher Training   


 
 
 
 


37/111







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 
AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution 15-21-22 Assembly Bill 361  
      
MEETING DATE:  November 17, 2021 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution 15-21-22 authorizing continued use of remote teleconferencing provisions 


pursuant to AB 361 and Government Code section 54953. 


 


BACKGROUND: 
Consistent with Government code section 54953, on September 22, 2021 , Santa Cruz City 


Schools Board of Education took action to continue virtual meetings, finding that meeting in 


person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.  


At the November 17, 2021, meeting, the Board will discuss and consider adopting Resolution 
15-21-22, to make a finding after reconsidering the state of the pandemic, that the current 
circumstances meet the requirements of AB 361 and Government Code section 54953 for the 
Board to continue conducting meetings remotely. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 
 


38/111







SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 


RESOLUTION NO. 15-21-22 AUTHORIZING USE OF REMOTE  


TELECONFERENCING PROVISIONS (AB 361) 


 


WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz County Office of Education (“Board of 


Education”) is committed to open and transparent government, and full compliance with the 


Ralph M. Brown Act (“Brown Act”); and  


 


WHEREAS, the Brown Act generally requires that a public agency take certain actions in order 


to use teleconferencing to attend a public meeting virtually; and  


 


WHEREAS, the Board of Education recognizes that a local emergency persists due to the 


worldwide COVID-19 pandemic; and 


 


WHEREAS, the California Legislature has recognized the ongoing state of emergency due to 


the COVID-19 pandemic and has responded by creating an additional means for public meetings 


to be held via teleconference (inclusive of internet-based virtual meetings); and 


 


WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, the California legislature passed Assembly Bill (“AB”) 


361, which amends Government Code, section 54953 and permits a local agency to use 


teleconferencing to conduct its meetings in any of the following circumstances: (A) the 


legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency, and state or local 


officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing; (B) the 


legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency for the purpose of 


determining, by majority vote, whether as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would 


present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; or (C) the legislative body holds a 


meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and has determined, by majority vote, pursuant 


to subparagraph (B), that, as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would present 


imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; and 


 


WHEREAS, in order for the Board of Education to use teleconferencing as allowed by AB 361 


after October 1, 2021, it must first adopt findings in a resolution, allowing the Board of 


Education to conduct teleconferenced meetings for a period of thirty (30) says; and 


 


WHEREAS, Governor Gavin Newsom declared a state of emergency for the State of California 


due to the COVID-19 pandemic in his order entitled “Proclamation of a State of Emergency,” 


signed March 4, 2020; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Board of Education hereby finds that the state and local emergencies have 


caused and will continue to cause imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Board of Education is conducting its meetings through the use of telephonic 


and internet-based services so that members of the public may observe and participate in 


meetings and offer public comment.  


 


39/111







NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the recitals set forth above are true and correct 


and fully incorporated into this Resolution by reference.   


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Education has determined that given the 


state of emergency, holding in-person meetings would present imminent risks to the health or 


safety of attendees.  


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the actions taken by the Board of Education through this 


resolution apply to any and all District committees which are otherwise governed by the Brown 


Act.  


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board of Education authorizes the County Superintendent 


of Schools or their designee(s) to take all actions necessary to conduct Board of Education 


meetings in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and all other applicable 


provisions of the Brown Act, using teleconferencing for a period of October 20, 2021 through 


November 20, 2021, thirty (30) days from the adoption of this Resolution after which the Board 


of Education will reconsider the circumstances of the state of emergency. 


 


PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Santa Cruz County Board of Education on this 17th day of 


November 2021, by the following vote: 


 


AYES          _____ 


 


NOES         _____ 


 


ABSENT     _____ 


 


ABSTAIN    _____    
 


40/111







Assembly Bill 361
November 17, 2021


41/111







Assembly Bill 361
Effective September 16, 2021


If there is a proclaimed state of emergency, agencies can choose to 
continue virtual board meetings if:


● State or local officials have imposed or recommended social 
distancing


Or


● Meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or 
safety or attendees due to the emergency


42/111







Previous Executive Order


Executive Order N-29-20:


● Allows, but does not require electronic meetings


● Requires opportunity for public to observe and address
electronically


● Expired September 30, 2021


43/111







● Location(s) must be open and accessible to the public


● Agenda must identify all locations and be posted in all locations


● Public comment must be allowed at all locations


Teleconference under the Brown Act:


44/111







● Allows, but does not require, electronic meetings for local 
agencies


● Similar, but modified, requires from Executive Order N 29-20


● Agencies must reevaluate every 30 days if electronic meetings 
are appropriate 


● Effective until 2024


AB 361 modifications:


45/111







Recommendation:


● Continue to livestream meetings of the Board of Education for 
the next thirty (30) days as ongoing community spread of COVID 
19 continues to pose imminent risk to the health and safety of 
attendees


46/111







                         


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Career Technical Education Study Session 
      
MEETING DATE:  November 17, 2021 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools has a long history in offering Career Technical Education (CTE)--formerly 
known as Regional Occupational Program--high school courses. The Career Technical Education 
staff consists of one Career Technical Education Counselor who specializes in working with 
students and high schools to provide multiple opportunities for students to engage in lessons 
and activities that promote career readiness, as well as 16 Career Technical Education teachers, 
who teach 31 different courses in 15 Career Technical Education pathways. Additionally, a 
Career Technical Education Teacher on Special Assignment (TOSA) funded by our CTEIG grant 
was added this year. This new TOSA supports CTE teachers in meeting all of the federal and 
state components required in each CTE course and pathway. The TOSA also supports staff in 
incorporating high impact instructional strategies into their daily instruction.  
 
Each Santa Cruz City Schools high school offers a variety of CTE courses. The California 
Department of Education categorizes these courses into what are called CTE Pathways and 
these Pathways fall under different Industry Sectors. There are 11 Industry Sectors, and the 
district currently offers 15 different Pathways that fall under 8 of these Industry Sectors. A 
Pathway consists of an entry-level CTE course and then an aligned advanced-level CTE course.  
 
Below is a table that outlines the CTE Pathways offered by Santa Cruz City Schools:  
 


Santa Cruz City Schools Career Technical Education Pathways 


 
Industry Sector 


 
Pathway (*designates magnet pathways 
open to students across the county) 


Enroll-
ment 


High 
School  


A-G 
UC/ 
CSU 


approved 


College 
Articulation 


Agriculture and 
Natural 
Resources  


Sustainable Agriculture 228 Soquel & 
Costano
a 


G & D In process 
w/ Cabrillo 


47/111







                         


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2. 


Ornamental Horticulture 55 Soquel F --- 


Arts, Media, and 
Entertainment  


Design, Visual, and Media Arts - Digital 
Photography 


179 Harbor F In process 
w/ Cabrillo 


Design, Visual, and Media Arts - Graphic 
Design  


205 Harbor, 
Santa 
Cruz, 
Soquel 


F Cabrillo 


Video Production 67 Harbor, 
Santa 
Cruz 


F Cabrillo 


Building and 
Construction 
Trades 


Residential and Commercial Construction 36 Soquel --- Cabrillo 


Cabinetry, Milling, and Woodworking 110 Soquel, 
Harbor 
& Santa 
Cruz 


G Cabrillo 


Education, Child 
Development, & 
Family Services 


Child Development 7 Costano
a 


--- Cabrillo 


Health Science 
and Medical 
Technology  


Medical Technology & Health Careers* 98 Harbor G --- 


Patient Care - Sports Medicine* 29 Soquel D Cabrillo 


Biotechnology* (currently building pathway 
by adding Biotech 2 in 22-23) 


45 Soquel D Cabrillo 


Information and 
Communication 
Technologies  


Software and System Development - 
Computer Science. (Previously these courses 
were CTE & currently are part of our math 
departments) 


89 Harbor, 
Santa 
Cruz 


C --- 


Manufacturing 
and Product 
Development  


Welding and Material Joining* 46 Soquel --- Cabrillo 


48/111







                         


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2. 


Transportation  Auto: System Diagnostics, Service, and 
Repair* 


88 Santa 
Cruz 


--- Hartnell 


Bike: System Diagnostics, Service, and 
Repair 


127 Harbor, 
Santa 
Cruz, 
Soquel 


G --- 


CTE Wheel Construction, Woodworking, & Welding 45 Soquel --- --- 


Total # of Students in CTE 1,454 --- 11/15 11/15 


 
 
 
Number of Students Served 
In total, 1,454 students are enrolled in the Career and Technical Education courses at the three 
comprehensive high schools and Costanoa. This is roughly 30% of the high school student 
population. 
 
Career and Technical Education Purpose and Goals 
At Santa Cruz City Schools, Career Technical Education provides high school students with the 
academic and technical skills, knowledge, and training necessary to succeed in future careers. 
Career Technical Education prepares students for careers by introducing them to workplace 
competencies and makes academic content accessible to students by providing it in a hands-on 
context. 
 
The district’s three year Career Technical Education Plan--based on the California Department 
of Education’s 11 Elements of High Quality Career Technical Education programs guidelines and 
rubric.  The plan was developed with input  from CTE staff and guides the continuous 
improvement of our CTE programs. Currently, the district’s three-year plan has four specific 
goals: 
 


1) Form ongoing and meaningful industry and labor partnerships. 
 


2) Provide opportunities for pupils to gain access to pre-apprenticeships, internships, and 
Work Based Learning opportunities. 
 


3) Provide opportunities for students to participate in after school, extended day, and out-
of school internships, competitions, leadership development, career technical student 
organizations, and other Work Based Learning opportunities. 


49/111







                         


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2. 


 
4) Ensure pathways lead to industry recognized certificates, or appropriate postsecondary 


education or training, or employment. 
 
This school year the district is in the process of updating the district Career and Technical 
Education Plan, and it has been recommended that we no longer focus on goal number one 
because we have met this goal, we continue to focus on goals 2-4, and an additional goal is 
added: Increase the number of students accessing CTE courses and pathways that are from the 
following student groups: English Learners, students in the Special Education program, and 
students from socioeconomically disadvantaged households. 
 
The district Career and Technical Education Plan will be discussed at upcoming Career and 
Technical Advisory Committee meetings, where additional input from all stakeholders will be 
gathered.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 


Current CTE 
Budgets 


Funding Source  Funding Notes Fiscal 
Year 


$40,000 LCFF Base 
(Unrestricted)  


.4 FTE = 2 Career Technical Education 
sections - sites use their unit FTE allocation 
to fund additional Career Technical 
Education sections above and beyond 
what they receive from Measure T 


2021-22 


$40,000 SB86 (Restricted) .4 FTE = 2 Career Technical Education 
sections - sites added additional sections 
using these COVID relief funds to reduce 
class size in larger courses 


2021-22 


$1,561,876 Measure T 
(Restricted)  


11.33 FTE + Materials, Supplies, & Repairs  2021-22 


$71,082 Perkins Grant 
(Restricted) 


Materials + Supplies for Pathways only 2021-22 


$264,045 Career Technical 
Education Incentive 
Grant (Restricted) 


1.0 FTE Teacher on Special Assignment  
 
.8 FTE Bike Tech  
 
.2 FTE Biotechnology 


2021-22 


50/111







                         


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2. 


 
Your Future is Our Business technical 
support & Counselor Coaching 
 
Professional Development 


$150,890  Strong Workforce 
Program - grant 
(Restricted) 


Biotechnology lab materials 
 
Naviance Student Portals & Professional 
Development 
 
5% of grant for County Office of Education 
administration 
 


2019-21 


$2,127,893 Grand Total - Career Technical Education Budget  


 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 


51/111







Santa Cruz City Schools 
Governance Study Session on Curriculum & Instruction: 


Career Technical Education  
November 17, 2021  6:00 - 8:30 pm 


Engaging Students Hearts and Minds – Every Student, Every Day 
                                            


Link to Presentation Slidedeck 


6:15 Role of Public in Study Session and Public Comment on Study 


Session Topic 


6.25 Introduction and Overview 


● Format for study session - timekeeping & transitions 


● Quick overview of CTE Programs in SCCS 


6:40 Health Science & Medical Technology: Biotech @ Soquel High, Nehal 


Pfieffer  


(15 minutes - 10 min presentation + 5 minutes of questions) 


6:55 Information & Communication Technologies: Computer Science @ 


SCHS, Brian Cooper; and IT Essentials Pathway (& coming IT Pathway) @ 


COE, Scott Keller & Elizabeth Shaw 


(15 minutes - 10 min presentation + 5 minutes of questions) 


7:10 Transportation: Bike Tech @ all 3 Comprehensive High Schools, Justin 


Smith  


(15 minutes - 10 min presentation + 5 minutes of questions) 


7:25 Arts, Media, Entertainment: Photography & Graphic Design @ Soquel, 


Marco Lucadano  


(15 minutes - 10 min presentation + 5 minutes of questions) 


7:40 Building & Construction: Mill Cabinetry @ Harbor & SCHS, Peter Boscaci  


(15 minutes - 10 min presentation + 5 minutes of questions) 


7:55 Agriculture & Natural Resources: Sustainable Agriculture @ Soquel, Tom 


Bentley  


(15 minutes - 10 min presentation + 5 minutes of questions) 


8:10 Whole Group Debrief (30 minutes) 


 


52/111







CTE Board Study Session
17 November 2021


53/111







CAREER TECHNICAL  EDUCATION


1 Santa Cruz High


● Automotive Technology
● Bicycle Technology
● Mill Cabinetry
● Graphic Design
● Photography
● Computer Science~


2 Harbor High 3 Soquel High


CTE offerings at Santa Cruz City Schools


● Automotive Technology
● Health Careers*
● Medical Technology*
● Bicycle Technology
● Mill Cabinetry
● Graphic Design
● Video Production
● Photography
● Computer Science~


● Sustainable Agriculture
● Bicycle Technology
● Biotechnology*
● Construction Tech
● Mill Cabinetry
● Welding*
● Photography
● Graphic Design
● Floral Design
● Sports Medicine*


* Magnet Classes with asterisk welcome 11th and 12th graders from other campuses. Students must 
provide their own transportation. 
~Computer Science is currently offered as part of the core curriculum.


● Fire Technology (Natural Bridges HS)
● Culinary Arts (Mission Hill MS)
● Hospitality (SC Beach Boardwalk)
● IT Essentials (Star Community School)


COE CLASS OFFERINGS


54/111







CTE Program Overview


● 2020 CTE Completer Grad Rate: 100% & 2021 CTE Completer Grad Rate: 98.9%


● 1 CTE Counselor & 1 CTE Teacher on Special Assignment


● 1 Auto Shop, 3 Wood Shops & 3 Bike Shops


● 16 CTE Teachers


● 31 different CTE courses


● 15 CTE pathways (minimum of beginning and advanced courses)


● Courses in 8 of the 11 CTE sectors 


● All CTE classes produce a portfolio inclusive of resume, cover letter, letter of rec, 
work samples, references, job application


● Newest CTE Course: CTE Dance Choreography
55/111







# of Students in Each Pathway
Pathway Enrollment


Sustainable Agriculture 186


Ornamental Horticulture 55


Design, Visual, and Media Arts: Digital Photography 179


Design, Visual, and Media Arts: Graphic Design 205


Video Production 67


Residential and Commercial Construction 36


Cabinetry, Milling, and Woodworking 110


Child Development 7


Medical Technology & Health Careers* 98


Patient Care - Sports Medicine* 29
56/111







# of Students in Each Pathway Cont.
Pathway Enrollment


Biotechnology* 
(currently building pathway by adding Biotech 2 in 22-23)


45


Software and System Development - Computer Science 
(not currently CTE)


89


Welding and Material Joining* 46


Auto: System Diagnostics, Service, and Repair* 88


Bike: System Diagnostics, Service, and Repair 127


CTE Wheel: Construction, Woodworking, & Welding 45


Total # of Students Enrolled in CTE 1,454


*indicates the course is a Magnet CTE course 
57/111







California Standards for Career Ready Practice 


● effective communication


● development of a career plan aligned with personal goals


● using critical thinking to solve problems


● workplace citizenship


● ethical leadership


● effective teamwork


● applying creativity and innovation 


● effective decision making


58/111







CTE Model Curriculum Anchor Standards


Common anchor standards  across the 15 industry sectors. - 9 standards are 
deliberately aligned with  Common Core English language arts standards


● Academics
● Communication
● Career Planning
● Technology
● Problem Solving
● Health and Safety
● Responsibility


● Ethics
● Leadership and Teamwork
● Technical Skills
● Demonstration and Application


59/111







CTE Model Curriculum Pathway Standards
All 15 industry sectors contain multiple pathways with specific standards. 
Some sample standards include:


Agricultural Mechanics Pathway


Agricultural Business Pathway


60/111







21Le


CTE Work-based Learning & Leadership 


All CTE classes offer work-based learning and leadership 
opportunities that are embedded into the curriculum.


● Work based learning: guest speakers, resume writing, and career 
exploration


● Leadership: portfolio presentation, participation in competitions, 
and student based enterprise providing services to community.


61/111







Biotech
Health Science & Medical 


Technologies


~Nehal Pfeiffer
Soquel High


62/111







girls, boys, latina/latino, AVID and English Language Learners.


Bell to Bell Engagement for ALL students


63/111







Field Trips STEM Cell Institute - Pebble Beach STEM Zone - BioMed 
Devices Conference - Stanford Bioinformatics - YFIOB 
Luncheon - Girls in STEM @ Lakeview middle school


64/111







Soquel High currently offers Biotechnology I
● This course is articulated with Cabrillo 


College’s Bio 41T 
● Soquel students can continue their 


Biotech pathway at Cabrillo with a Dual 
enrollment in Biotech II (Bio42T)


○ completion of this course leads to a 
certificate in Biotechnology with the 
addition of a microscopy lab.


Our CTE Biotechnology course 
and Cabrillo’s course both have 
adopted the same curriculum. 
Curriculum includes a textbook, 
a laboratory experiments lab 
manual, a teacher’s manual and 
workbook.


Pathway and Curriculum 


65/111







Rubrics not only help with teacher clarity but Rubrics also provide students with valuable information about the degree of which a 
specific learning outcome has been achieved. They provide students with concrete feedback that displays areas of strength and 
areas in need of improvement. Students can use this feedback as a tool to further develop their abilities


Rubrics and Assessments 


66/111







Hands on lab materials 
Crispr Kits
DNA fingerprinting materials
Organisms for dissection
GMO primers and reagents
DNA extraction labs
Crime Scene DNA samples 
gloves
cleaning agents
bacterial transformation lab


lab equipment one time and on going
freezer, refrigerator, 
water bath, scales, autoclave
gel electrophoresis boxes,
vortexes, centrifuges, 
pipettes and pipette tips  
microwaves, centrifuge tubes, microtubes, 
alcohol, rennin, chymosin, DNA necklaces, 
agarose, imaging equipment


● transportation for field trips


Budget/Supplies


67/111







Student Produced PSA


The following 
videos were 
created as a 
collaboration 
between the CTE 
Biotechnology 
class and the CTE 
Video Production 
class. 


68/111







69/111







70/111







Student Produced Class Website


Website link


71/111







Computer Science
Information and Communication Technologies


~ Scott Keller & Joseph Chanin-Meiers
COE, Harbor


72/111







21Le


 SCHS: Intro & AP Computer Science 
● Focus on critical thinking, problem solving, coding, and more


● CodeHS - high school coding curriculum comprised of tasks 
and projects for beginning, intermediate, and advanced 
computer science students


● Computer Science project highlights


73/111







21Le


 COE Pathway & Curriculum Info 
● Cybersecurity and Networking Pathway 


○ CIS 71 IT Essentials (1 Year articulated course)


○ CIS 71 Computer Fundamentals/CIS Fundamentals of Computer Security 


■ Prepare for A+ Certification 
● Curriculum fully aligned with Cabrillo College 


○ Instructor required to complete CISCO IT Essential Certified Instructor  Western 
Academy Support and Training Center


○ CISCO Net Academy IT Essentials Version 7 (also used by Cabrillo)
○ Standards connection to curriculum 


● Santa Cruz COE funded through Strong Workforce Round 2 grant
○ Guided by data provided by Santa Cruz Workforce
○ Instructor, curriculum, facilities, hardware, events 


■ Cyberclub, Think Big! Series, CSEdweek, CS Personal Learning Community 
● CTE Pathway  


○ Cabrillo aligned curriculum/ college credit 
○ Student professional portfolio develop and participation in Digital NEST’s NEST 


Flight 
○ Student participation in ICT Career Panels and Guest Speaker opportunities 


through partnership with Your Future is our Business
○ Free Santa Cruz Works memberships provided to students 
○ Future plans of expansion


■ Student site technology teams
■ Include additional pathway (Information Support and Services Pathway


74/111







21Le


Computer Science Standards
Standard: 9-12S.CS.2
● Content Area: Computer Science; Category: Computing Systems


○ Standard: Categorize and describe the different functions of 
operating system software.


Standard: 9-12.CS.2 
● Content Area: Computer Science; Category: Computing Systems


○ Standard: Compare levels of abstraction and interactions between 
application software, system software, and hardware.


Standard: 9-12S.NI.3
● Content Area: Computer Science; Category: Networks & the Internet
● Standard: Examine the scalability and reliability of networks, by 


describing the relationship between routers, switches, servers, 
topology, and addressing.


75/111







21Le


Computer Science Standards
● Standard: 9-12S.NI.4
● Content Area: Computer Science;Category: Networks & the Internet
● Standard: Explain how the characteristics of the Internet influence 


the systems developed on it.
Standard 9-12.NI.6
● Content Area: Computer Science; Category: Networks & the Internet


● Standard: Compare and contrast security measures to address 
various security threats.


Standard 9-12.NI.7
● Content Area: Computer Science; Category: Networks & the Internet
● Standard: Compare and contrast cryptographic techniques to model 


the secure transmission of information.


76/111







21Le


Assessment & Portfolios
Formative Assessment
● Cisco Certified Chapter Quizzes and Exams
● Final Exam
● Cisco Certified Labs 
Summative Assessments
● Student Portfolios
● Research Project
● Optional Computer building project
Portfolios
● Career based foundations (Cover Letter and Resume)
● Student Goals (Course-related and Professional)
● Celebration of projects
● Participation in end of year reflection 


77/111







21Le


Work Based Learning Opportunities
Future of Work Based Learning Opportunities :
● Digital NEST
● Cruzio
● Cloud Brigade
● Pilot City 
● Cabrillo 


78/111







Bike Tech
Transportation


~Justin Smith
Harbor, Santa Cruz, Soquel High


79/111







 Pathway & Curriculum Info 
● Introductory and Advanced Bicycle Technology
● Partners include: Project Bike Tech, Specialized, Giant, and 


Shimano. 
● Industry recognized certificates and Technician Training 


Certification offered by Shimano.
● Advanced students create personal projects including usable 


technology. 


80/111







21Le


Work based Learning: Speakers


● Olympic Track Cyclist and Personal Gold Film 
maker Adam Laurent 


● Bell Helmets Project Manager Simon Fisher
● Gu Nutrition Sponsor and DK Winner Yuri 


Hauswald 
● Kona Bikes Athlete Manager Barry Wicks
● Velonews Editor and Chief Fred Dreier 
● Tour of Scotland Winner Leah Thomas


81/111







21Le


Assessment & Portfolios


82/111







Link
83/111







21Le


Students in action


84/111







21Le


Work-Based/ Leadership Opportunities


85/111







Photography & 
Graphic Design 


Arts, Media, Entertainment


~Marco Lucadano
Soquel High


86/111







Sample projects Cross disciplinary collaboration between 
Photography, Graphic Design, English, Spanish, and 
Health classes. Culminating in a school mural project.


87/111







Budget/supplies


What is the measure T and Perkins money 
used for?
● Screen printing supplies
● Poster printing and display
● Cameras
● Tablets
● Portfolio supplies
● Art supplies


88/111







Portfolio


89/111







Assessment 


Resume Rubric


Career Skills Rubric


90/111







91/111







Work Based Learning Opportunities
Students participate in competitions to create products for the community. Cross disciplinary 
collaboration is invited and encouraged.


92/111







Work Based Learning Opportunities
Students participate in competitions to create products for the community. 
Cross disciplinary collaboration is invited and encouraged.


93/111







CTE AME Graduates


94/111







Mill Cabinetry/ 
Construction


Building & Construction


~Peter Boscacci
Harbor & Santa Cruz


95/111







21Le


 Pathway & Curriculum Info 
Industry Sector: Building and Construction Trades


Pathway: Cabinetry, Millwork & Woodworking


● Introduction to Woodworking, Cabinetry & Millwork - Course Outline 
● Advanced Woodworking, Cabinetry & Millwork - Course Outline


 


● Curriculum has been aligned with and developed adhering to the California CTE 
Knowledge and Performance Anchor Standards (KPAS) as listed in the Course 
Outlines. Course content has been developed from various sources including 
State requirements, collaboration with colleagues and industry partners, personal 
industry experience and teaching experience.


96/111







Funding Sources and Uses
Annual Funding Sources: SCHS and Harbor Combined


● Perkins - $3,760.00
● Measure T - $6,132.00


Current Class Size:
● 30 students per semester at SCHS (60/year)
● 24 students at Harbor


Funds are used for:
● Materials - Lumber & Consumables 
● Equipment repair and maintenance
● Equipment - New


○ Replacement of unusable/outdated equipment
○ Purchase of new equipment to maintain current industry trends, safety & standards


■ CNC (Computer Numerical Control) Routers / Laser Cutting Machines


97/111







SCHS and Harbor High Woodshops


Santa Cruz High Harbor High


98/111







Leadership Development


● Each class will be involved in at least one community focused project. These projects will typically 
be designed to provide a local non-profit organization with needed project assistance as 
determined by the teacher.


● These projects are designed to develop individual and group growth and responsibility.


● Learning outcomes include:
○ Goal Setting
○ Time Management
○ Team Collaboration
○ Leadership Opportunities
○ Task Definition and Delegation 
○ Planning and Organizing a Community Event


99/111







Past and Ongoing Community Projects
Barn Owl Nesting Boxes -
Native Animal Rescue Organization - Santa Cruz
Collaboration with UCSC PBRC - Predatory Bird Research Group
Pajaro Levee Raptor Pilot Study


Owl Nesting Box installed at the 
Civic Auditorium


100/111







Past and Ongoing Community Projects


Little Free Libraries -
Live Like Coco Foundation - Santa Cruz


Anna Jean Cummings Park - Filling the Library 
with Kate Paveo & Supervisor Leopold Leo’s Haven Playground - Live Oak101/111







Work Based Learning Opportunities


Michelle Webb - Marketing Manager - Big Creek Lumber Co.
● This recent talk focused on opportunities with 


Big Creek from retail sales to forestry management. 


David Wright - Operations Manager - Elements Manufacturing
● Mr. Wright discussed the opportunities in the Architectural Millwork industry. He 


focused on their core business, opportunities for those interested in CAD, 
installation, CNC operations and customer interface.


102/111







21Le


Assessments
Assessments are completed through a series of written and performance evaluations with respect to safety 
and tool use.


Individual projects are assessed on various criteria included in a rubric, which is adjusted as the class 
progresses to reflect the level technical knowledge and skill needed. Projects are scaffolded, each one 
building on a technique or skill learned from a previous project. In addition to my assessments, each 
project is accompanied by a “Project Feedback” exercise which asks for a detailed description of the project, 
new techniques learned and a self assessment on how they could improve the outcome if needed.


Group projects are usually self assessed with a more detailed “Feedback” which includes each students’ 
role, delegation of duties, conflict resolution, adherence to a plan, attention to detail, etc.


103/111







Work Samples
Bandsaw Box, Spline Miter Box, “Drunken” Cutting Board, Turned Bowl, Tortilla Press, 
Wood Mosaic, Lathe Turned Pens, Stool, Cribbage Board, Cutting Board with Inlay


104/111







Sustainable 
Agriculture 


Industry Sector: Agriculture and Natural Resources
Pathway: Agriscience


Tom Bentley~Soquel High


105/111







21Le


 Pathway
● Course Name: Sustainable Agriculture
● Pathway: Agriscience 
● Schools: Costanoa and Soquel
● Classes:


○ Introduction to Sustainable Agriculture
○ Advanced Sustainable Agriculture
○ TA/Special Projects Class


106/111







● ESS3.C: Human Impacts on Earth Systems:  The sustainability of human societies and the biodiversity that supports 
them requires responsible management of natural resources.


● LS4.D: Biodiversity and Humans:  Humans depend on the living world for the resources and other benefits provided 
by biodiversity. But human activity is also having adverse  impacts on biodiversity through overpopulation, 
overexploitation, habitat destruction, pollution, introduction of invasive species, and climate change. Thus sustaining 
biodiversity so that ecosystem functioning and productivity are maintained is essential to supporting and enhancing 
life on Earth. Sustaining biodiversity also aids humanity by preserving landscapes of recreational or inspirational 
value. 


Standards Aligned Curriculum Design Project


107/111







21Le


CTE Collaboration:
● Construction Tech
● Floral Design
● Coming soon:  Culinary Arts :)


108/111







21Le


Where does the money go?
Funding Sources:
Measure T:  $3,000
Perkins: $9,402


109/111







College and Career: ● Field Trips
● Guest Speakers
● Internships
● Post-Secondary Learning


● Leadership Opportunities 


110/111







Questions?


111/111





		Agenda 11.17.21

		6.1.1. APS-Steps to Success 11.17.21 Brd Agenda Cov

		6.1.1. APS - STEPS TO SUCCESS 11.17.21

		6.1.2. APS - ABRITE 11.17.21 Brd Agenda Cov

		6.1.2. APS - ABRITE 11.17.21

		6.1.3. BeyondSST_11.17.21 Brd Agenda Cov

		6.1.3. SantaCruzCitySchools-SST 504 License Agreement (1) (1)

		8.1. Resolution 15-21-22 Cover

		8.1. Resolution 15-21-22

		AB 361 presentation

		8.2. - Cover - CTE Board Study Session 11.17.21

		8.2. - Agenda for Curriculum Study Session - CTE 11.17.21

		8.2. CTE Curriculum Study Session - Board Meeting 17 November 2021




